## Ton Yi Industrial Corp.

## **Rules of Procedures for Shareholders' Meeting**

June 20, 2013

- 1. Shareholders' meetings of the Company shall proceed according to the Rules of Procedures for Shareholders' Meeting (the "Rules").
- 2. The term "shareholder" as set forth in the Rules shall mean a shareholder himself and any proxy authorized by a shareholder.
- 3. The Company shall state the time for accepting registration for the meeting and the location where the registration will take place as well as other special notes in the meeting notice. Registration by shareholders shall start at least 30 minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting. The registration location shall be clearly identified and there shall be an adequate number of qualified staff to assist with the registration procedure. A shareholder wishing to attend a shareholders' meeting shall present an attendance card, sign-in card or other supporting attendance documents. A proxy solicitor shall provide such identification documents for verification as well. A shareholder shall submit the sign-in card as a substitute for sign-in to represent its attendance of the meeting. The total number of shares present at the meeting shall be calculated based on the sign-in cards plus the number of shares exercising their voting power in writing or through electronic transmission.
- 4. The attendance and vote of a shareholders' meeting shall be computed on the basis of the number of shares.
- 5. A shareholders' meeting shall be held on the premises of the Company or a place that is convenient for shareholders to attend. A shareholders' meeting shall start no earlier than 9 a.m. or no later than 3 p.m.
- 6. Unless otherwise stipulated by laws, a shareholders' meeting shall be called by the Board of Directors (the "Board") and be chaired by the Chairman of the

Board. Where the Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise his authority for any reason, the Vice Chairman shall act on his behalf. Where the Vice Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise his authority for any reason, the Chairman shall designate one of the Directors to act on his behalf. Where no such designee is designated, the Chairperson shall be elected from the directors. In the event where the shareholders' meeting is convened by a convener entitled to hold the meeting other than the Board, the convener shall be the Chairperson. In the event where there are more than two conveners, the Chairperson shall be elected from the conveners.

If one of the Directors is appointed to act as the Chairperson of the meeting in accordance with the preceding paragraph, he or she shall have served as a Director for more than 6 months and have a sound knowledge of the Company's financial and business status. The same shall apply to the situation where the Chairperson is the representative of a legal-entity director.

- 7. The Company may appoint lawyers, accountants or other relevant personnel to attend the shareholders' meeting. All staff members assisting the procedure of the shareholders' meeting shall wear an identification badge.
- 8. The Company shall record, in audio or video, the meeting in its entirety on a continuous and uninterrupted basis from the time that any shareholders register for attendance, including the registration process, proceedings of the meeting and the voting and vote counting process.
  - The aforementioned recordings shall be retained for at least one year. However, in the event any shareholder files a lawsuit in according with Article 189 of the Company Act, such recordings shall be kept until the conclusion of litigation.
- 9. The Chairman shall call the meeting to order at the specified time. Where the number of shares represented by the attending shareholders has not reached the required quorum of one-half of total issued shares, the Chairman may announce a postponement of the meeting. The total postponements shall be limited to two instances and the total time any such delays shall not exceed

one hour. If after two postponements, the number of shares represented by the shareholders present does not reach the specified quorum but represents more than one-third of the total issued shares, a tentative-resolution may be adopted according to Section 1 of Article 175 of the Company Act. Should the number of shares represented by shareholders in attendance constitute more than one-half of the total issued shares before the shareholders' meeting adjourns, the Chairman may offer the tentative-resolution to the meeting for resolution again in accordance to Article 174 of the Company Act.

- 10. Should the shareholders meeting be convened by the Board, the agenda of the meeting shall be set by the Board and the meeting shall proceed according to the agenda, and such agenda shall not be amended without the resolution being passed by the shareholders' meeting. In the event where the shareholders' meeting is convened by a person with convening rights other than the Board, the provision set forth in the preceding paragraph shall apply. Unless duly resolved at the meeting, where the meeting agenda (including extemporaneous motions) set forth in the two preceding paragraphs has not been completed, the Chairman shall not announce to adjourn the meeting. After the adjournment of the meeting, shareholders shall not elect a chairman and resume the meeting at the same or an alternative venue. If the Chairman adjourns the meeting in violation of the Rules, the present shareholders may elect another Chairperson by a majority vote to continue the meeting accordingly.
- 11. Prior to addressing the meeting, a shareholder shall fill out a speech note, to summarize the key subjects of his speech, the shareholder's account number (or the code of the attendance card) and the name of the shareholder. The sequence of speakers shall be determined by the Chairman.

Should any shareholder in attendance submit a speech but not actually speak at the meeting, it shall be deemed that the speech has not been made by the shareholder. In case of a discrepancy between what was summarized on the floor note and what was actually spoken, the contents actually spoken shall prevail.

When a shareholder is properly addressing the meeting, no other shareholder shall speak to interrupt unless otherwise permitted by the Chairman and the speaking shareholder. The Chairman shall stop such interruption of any violating shareholder.

- 12. Each shareholder is entitled to speak no more than twice on the same discussion proposal, unless agreed to otherwise by the Chairman. Each speech is limited to five minutes, and the Chairman may stop any speech of any shareholder that is in violation of the aforementioned time limit or the content of which is beyond the scope of the discussion proposal.
- 13. Where a legal entity is entrusted to attend a shareholders' meeting on someone else's behalf, such legal entity may appoint only one representative to attend the meeting. Where a legal entity shareholder has appointed two or more representatives to attend the meeting, only one representative can speak for the same discussion proposal.
- 14. The Chairman may respond in person or through an appropriate appointee after the speech of a shareholder.
- 15. In the event where the Chairman considers the discussion of a proposal has reach the extent necessary for a resolution to be reached, the Chairman may announce discontinuation of the discussion and proceed to the voting process.
- 16. Voting counting for a resolution or election shall be conducted in public at the place of the shareholders meeting. The Chairman shall appoint persons responsible for supervising and counting of ballots. However, the persons responsible for supervising the ballots must be appointed from the shareholders. The voting results, including the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site immediately at the meeting and recorded in writing.

Where Directors are elected at the meeting, the election shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable election rules of the Company and the election results, including the list of elected Directors and numbers of votes for the

- election of Directors, shall be announced on-site immediately at the meeting.
- 17. The Chairman may announce a recess as deemed appropriate during the proceeding of a shareholders' meeting.
- 18. A proposal shall be deemed duly resolved should there be no objection raised by any shareholder present in response to such an inquiry by the Chairman. Unless otherwise provided for under the Company Act or Articles of Association, a proposal for vote shall be resolved by a majority of the presenting shareholders.

Upon voting process, where there is no objection raised by any shareholders, the proposal shall be deemed resolved and has equal validity as a resolution resolved through voting process.

- 19. In the event of an amendment proposal or substitute proposal to an original proposal, the Chairman shall decide on the order of the vote of the amendment or substitute proposal together with the original proposal. However, if one of the proposals has been approved, the others shall be deemed overruled and no further voting shall be required.
- 20. The Chairman may direct disciplinary personnel (or security guards) to assist in safeguarding the order of the meeting venue. The Chairman may direct the disciplinary personnel (or security guards) to remove shareholders from the venue if the shareholders have violated the Rules and refused to obey the instructions of the Chairman, impeded the proceedings of the meeting and furthermore does not comply after having being asked to stop. The disciplinary personnel (or security guards) shall, while helping safeguard the order of the meeting venue, wear an arm-band with the words "Disciplinary Personnel."
- 21. All matters not specified in the Rules shall be subject to the Company Act, Articles of Association and other relevant laws and regulations.
- 22. The Rules and any amendments hereof, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders meeting.